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Syllabus: This memorandum sets forth the opinion of the Telecommunications Department Staff (Staff) that there is no indication SWBT presented inaccurate, false, or misleading evidence to the Missouri Public Service Commission as to the accuracy of its Line Maintenance Operations System (LMOS) or its loop qualification process in the proceedings held before this Commission regarding SWBT’s section 271 Missouri long distance application.

Introduction

On May 28, 2002, the Federal Communications Commission (FCC) and SBC Communications, Inc. (SBC) entered into a Consent Decree in which SBC agreed to make a $3.6 million payment to the United States Treasury (attached). This consent decree resolved two FCC investigations concerning inaccurate information SBC submitted to the FCC in affidavits supporting two separate section 271 applications to provide long distance telephone service. According to a May 28th FCC press release, the section 271 applications involved applications to provide long distance service in Missouri, Oklahoma, and Kansas.

Because Missouri was cited in the press release, questions have been raised as to the accuracy of certain data presented to the MoPSC by SWBT in support of its section 271 Missouri application. The purpose of this memorandum is to provide the MoPSC with the results of a review of the record conducted by the Staff in which the Staff sought to determine if any inaccurate information was submitted to the MoPSC by SWBT in support of its section 271 application.

In conducting its inquiry, the Staff has reviewed the Consent Decree and Staff has also discussed these matters with officials from SWBT, and the FCC’s Enforcement Bureau. For informational purposes, a Copy of the Consent Decree is attached to this memorandum.

Background

Approval of the Consent Decree brought closure to two investigations conducted by the FCC’s Enforcement Bureau. These investigations were conducted in relation to SBC’s Texas, Kansas/Oklahoma and Missouri section 271 applications, although Texas was not mentioned in the May 28th press release. One investigation centered on inaccuracies in SWBT’s loop qualification process, and is characterized by the FCC as an investigation focusing on “information SBC provided to the [FCC] Commission as part of its section 271 applications.” The second investigation involved an item known as the Loop Maintenance Operations System (LMOS) and is characterized by the FCC as an investigation focusing on “competitors access to SBC’s operations support systems.”

As part of the Consent Decree the FCC agreed to terminate the Investigations and SBC agreed to pay $3.6 million to the U.S. Treasury. In addition to the monetary payment, SBC agreed to institute certain internal investigations and to institute an internal “Compliance Plan.” As part of the internal investigation, SBC agreed to institute disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal, against any employee who may have intentionally made misrepresentations or willful omissions to the FCC.  In agreeing to the Settlement, SBC did not admit to any noncompliance, violation, or liability.

Loop Qualification Process

When a C-LEC wants to provide xDSL service to a particular end user, it can check electronically to determine whether an xDSL-capable loop (i.e. a non-loaded copper loop) is available to serve that customer. The process of checking for the existence of interferers (load coils, bridge tap, or regenerative repeaters) of data communications is referred to as checking the loop “make up.” It is noteworthy that SWBT’s back office systems do not contain loop make-up information in an electronic format on all loops; rather, a manual search of records and facilities is required.

On October 16, 2001 the Enforcement Bureau of the FCC issued a Notice of Apparent Liability (NAL) in the section 271 applications from the states of Kansas and Oklahoma. The NAL forfeiture was for $2.52 million and Missouri was not mentioned in the NAL. The NAL followed an investigation in which the Enforcement Bureau focused on the circumstances surrounding SBC’s submission to the FCC of inaccurate factual information made in affidavits in the Kansas/Oklahoma proceedings. The information in question concerned competing carriers’ ability to access loop qualification information from SWBT. The investigation also involved (1) the timeliness of disclosures SWBT made to the FCC subsequent to the FCC’s approval of the section 271 Kansas/Oklahoma application, (2) adherence to the SBC/SNET Consent Decree, and (3) the veracity of an affidavit submitted by an SBC employee in connection with the investigation.

Because the Enforcement Bureau’s Investigation solely involved matters pertaining to the section 271 application for Kansas and Oklahoma, the Staff does not believe this portion of the Consent Decree applies to Missouri.  Therefore, Staff has not made further inquiries regarding the Loop Qualification process.

Loop Maintenance Operations System

LMOS is part of SWBT’s Operations Support System (OSS) and is used by C-LECs to electronically submit trouble tickets for an end-user, and subsequently to obtain information of the repair status. As part of performance measurements, information pertaining to the accuracy of LMOS is also reported as part of SWBT’s maintenance and repair metrics. Ensuring that SWBT’s LMOS records are correct and available in a timely manner is important because C-LECs need prompt and accurate access to SWBT’s maintenance and repair systems in order to resolve their end-user customers’ troubles and to determine the status of those troubles electronically.

Failure to update the LMOS database will prevent C-LECs from being able to electronically enter trouble tickets on their customers’ accounts, and to track the progress of trouble resolution. Many C-LECs believe that instances of trouble are most likely to occur on new accounts - a time when the relationship with a new customer is most sensitive to customer-affecting troubles. It is noteworthy that not all C-LECs utilize electronic trouble reporting, and that all C-LECs are capable of manual trouble reporting. However, manual order processing is time consuming and subject to human error. Moreover, any tendency to leave C-LECs without a means to electronically report troubles on new customer accounts cannot be considered parity.

LMOS discussions before the MoPSC

On March 6, 2001, the MoPSC voted unanimously to endorse SWBT’s section 271 long distance application. Prior to that time, no LMOS issues were raised in the MoPSC proceedings.

On April 4-5, 2001 (On April 4th, SWBT filed its section 271 Missouri application with the FCC), the Missouri Staff participated in a 6-month review of SWBT’s performance measurements. This review was conducted by the Texas Staff in Austin, Texas with the participation of the representatives of the regulatory bodies all 5 SWBT states. During this review process, SWBT acknowledged a record-keeping issue with LMOS, thus providing the Missouri staff with its first awareness of potential LMOS issues.

On June 7, 2001, SWBT voluntarily withdrew its initial Missouri section 271 application to the FCC in part due to concerns regarding the level of accuracy of LMOS reporting. FCC Chairman Powell issued a statement indicating that concerns had surfaced related to cost-based pricing, and SWBT’s operations support system.

On August 16, 2001 SWBT appeared before the MoPSC and made a presentation regarding its intent to file a new section 271 Missouri application to the FCC, and how that application might differ from its original application. During its presentation, SWBT counsel specifically pointed to three issues which came up at the FCC during the first Missouri application and which it would address in its new application. Those three issues were: (1) LMOS; (2) the relationship of SWBT to its data affiliate, SBC Advanced Solutions, Incorporated (the ASCENT decision); and (3) voluntary wholesale price reductions.

Regarding LMOS, SWBT’s attorney, Paul Lane, explained shortcomings pertaining to LMOS, giving particular attention to “sequencing” errors. Mr. Lane then gave an overview of three changes SWBT put in place to help correct LMOS performance, and indicated that SWBT’s new FCC filing would contain an attestation audit from Ernst & Young to “verify that the system changes were made and it operates as we say it does operate” (transcript page 3360).

When asked to elaborate, Mr. Lane responded to questions form Chair Simmons that the nature of the Ernst & Young review was to provide assurances to the FCC that changes were made to the LMOS database, and the systems operated as SWBT described in attestation and representation letters (transcript page 3377).

Vice Chair Lumpe also questioned Mr. Lane regarding LMOS. Specifically, Commissioner Lumpe inquired of the differences between the Ernst & Young LMOS audit and the audit being conducted in Texas. Mr. Lane expressed some unfamiliarity with the Texas audit, but gave his understanding that the Texas audit would try to go back and restate certain performance measurements which were based on data gathered during the time period prior to SWBT’s changes to the LMOS system. Mr. Lane explained that the Texas audit was not a part of the Missouri section 271 filing at the FCC (transcript page 3382).

Commissioner Gaw asked Mr. Lane about erroneous information on section 271 applications for the states of Kansas and Oklahoma (transcript pages 3385, 3387). In response Mr. Lane spoke of an issue involving the information that SWBT had not submitted to the FCC in the Kansas and Oklahoma applications on how SWBT performs loop qualifications. Mr. Lane indicated that information had been provided to the FCC and that SWBT was waiting on a decision from the FCC, but that he (Mr. Lane) was unfamiliar with any state investigation, other than the LMOS investigation occurring in Texas.

Further responses from Mr. Lane to questions from Commissioner Gaw indicated that the Texas LMOS audit would be similar to the Missouri Ernst & Young audit in that SWBT would pay for the audit, but that the audit would be conducted under the auspices of the Texas Commission and its staff (transcript page 3389).

On August 28, 2001, the MoPSC issued an Order accepting an AT&T and Staff recommendation that Missouri-specific data be included in the LMOS review and investigation being conducted under the oversight of the Texas PUC Staff. The review is ongoing as of this writing.

Summary conclusion of the LMOS issues

Based on the record available, it is the Staff’s opinion that SWBT LMOS issues were first identified as early as the Texas section 271 application.
 Although the record is not clear, the Staff believes SWBT instituted changes at that time to correct those LMOS issues but that (1) the changes were not permanent or sufficient to address region-wide LMOS issues or (2) new LMOS issues were identified after the Missouri application was initially submitted to the FCC. In either case, no party questioned SWBT’s LMOS system while SWBT’s section 271 application was under consideration by the MoPSC. Consequently, SWBT made no representations  to the MoPSC as to the efficacy of LMOS until August 16, 2001 – long after the MoPSC had voted to approve SWBT’s section 271 application. Plainly stated, LMOS was never an issue of consideration in Missouri until SWBT’s section 271 application was pending before the FCC.

Moreover, it is the Staff’s opinion that the only LMOS representations SWBT made to the MoPSC occurred at the August 16, 2001 Oral Presentation. In summary, those representations were that (1) SWBT acknowledged LMOS problems, (2) changes had been instituted to correct the problems, and (3) Ernst & Young was filing attestation documents with the FCC in support of SWBT’s LMOS representations of adequacy.

It is noteworthy that the August 16th LMOS representations made by SWBT at its Oral Presentation addressed “sequencing” errors exclusively.
 Although the Ernst & Young attestation filed with the FCC on behalf of SBC alludes to the discovery of other LMOS errors, the attestation does not analyze the cause of these new errors.
 In any event, the Staff can find no evidence that SWBT in any way mislead the MoPSC in its reporting of LMOS matters.

Based on the record available, and in the absence of material new evidence relating to this matter, the Staff considers SWBT’s representations to be a true and accurate account of the LMOS issue as it was then known. The Staff notes that the firm of Hewlett-Packard is conducting the Texas LMOS audit and that the audit will include Missouri-specific data. Absent the Hewlett-Packard final report, the Staff is not in a position to comment on whether SWBT’s purported LMOS “fixes” are sufficient to resolve all LMOS issues.

Chronological History of SWBT’s Section 271 Missouri Applications

November 20, 1998 – SWBT notifies the MoPSC of its intent to file with the FCC a section 271 application for Missouri

March 1st to March 10, 1999 – full evidentiary hearings conducted resulting in an order directing staff to hire outside consultant to evaluate and verify the data underlying SWBT’s performance measurements.

January 4, 2000 – MoPSC issues an Order Directing Staff to Hire Outside Consultant

March 3, 2000 – Pursuant to the Missouri Office of Administration’s contract procedures, Request for Proposals to hire consultant are issued

June 9, 2000 – Staff notified the MoPSC of its determination that Ernst & Young should be selected to perform the evaluation and verification of SWBT’s Missouri specific data underlying SWBT’s performance measurements

June 28, 2000 – SWBT files a Motion to Update the Record and for Approval of its section 271 Missouri application. SWBT submits for approval of its Missouri 2000 Agreement (M2A). 

July 6, 2000 – The MoPSC issues an Order Directing SWBT to Hire Consultant in which SWBT is to enter into a contract consistent with the terms and conditions of the Staff RFP

October 11-12, 2000 – On-the-Record proceedings conducted at the MoPSC

October 12, 2000 – Staff files the interim consultant report prepared and released by Ernst & Young on 10-10-00

November 1, 2000 – Ernst & Young issues its final report

November 8-9 2000 – Further On-the-Record proceedings conducted at the MoPSC including a presentation by Ernst & Young

November 20, 2000 – SWBT files a redlined version of an updated M2A reflecting changes agreed to by SWBT in exchange for a favorable section 271 recommendation by the MoPSC

January 30, 2001 – Intervening parties meet with the outside consultant in a technical conference to discuss the outside consultant’s evaluation.

January 31, 2001 – Final On-the-Record conference with SWBT and intervening parties

February 13, 2001 – the MoPSC issues an Interim Order in which it explains its position that SWBT was still not in compliance with section 271 of the Act

February 28, 2001 – SWBT files final revisions to the M2A

March 1, 2001 – the Staff files its Response to SWBT’s M2A changes in which the Staff opines that SWBT is fully compliant with the 2-13-01 Interim Order.  

March 6, 2001 the MoPSC votes unanimously to endorse SWBT’s section 271 long distance application.

March 15, 2001 – MoPSC issues a 92-page Order in support of SWBT’s section 271 long distance application

April 3, 2001 – SWBT implements an enhancement to the loop qualification system, so that it now searches records in LFACS for a non-loaded copper loop connected to the requested address for which actual loop makeup information exists in LFACS (see 10-12-01 Ex Parte letter to Chairman Powell from Michael K. Kellogg).

April 4-5 2001– MoPSC Staff travels to Austin, Texas to participate in a 6-month review of SWBT’s performance measurements. This review was hosted by the Texas Staff, and included representatives of all 5 SWBT states. During this review process, SWBT acknowledges a record-keeping issue with LMOS. Thus, Missouri staff first becomes aware of LMOS issues.

April 4, 2001 – SWBT submits its section 271 Missouri application to the FCC, thus commencing the 90-day review process

April 6, 2001 – SWBT submits affidavits in support of its Kansas/Oklahoma applications

April 24, 2001 – AT&T files comments at the FCC in Opposition to SBC’s section 271 Missouri application. In its comments, AT&T cites difficulty obtaining electronic access to SWBT’s LMOS systems.

May 4, 2001 – The FCC’s Enforcement Bureau issues a letter of inquiry to SBC concerning SWBT’s loop qualification process.

May 16, 2001 – In response to comments of intervening parties to its section 271 Missouri application, SWBT files a Reply Brief with the FCC stating in part that SWBT had corrected the status of LMOS.

June 1, 2001 – The Texas PUC approves a new version of performance measurements. As part of its approval, the Texas PUC orders audits of flow-through rates involving interpretation of business rules associated with performance measurement 13, and SWBT’s LMOS system (See PUCT Project No. 20400, Order No. 33; June 1, 2001). 

June 1, 2001 – In an ex parte filing with the FCC made in response to FCC staff inquiries, SWBT stated that past C-LEC LMOS sequencing errors were now correctly reflected in LMOS. 

June 7, 2001 – SWBT voluntarily withdraws its Missouri section 271 application, in part due to concerns regarding the level of accuracy of LMOS reporting. FCC Chairman Powell issues a statement indicating that concerns had surfaced related to cost-based pricing, and SWBT’s operations support systems (OSS).


Although the FCC notes concerns with SWBT’s OSS, no Notice of Apparent Liability is issued pertaining to LMOS.

July 26, 2001 – The FCC’s Enforcement Bureau issues a letter of inquiry to SBC concerning SWBT’s LMOS.

August 16, 2001 – the MoPSC conducts an On-the-Record proceeding specifically addressing three issues expected to change in SWBT’s revised section 271 Missouri FCC application. Those three issues are: 1) LMOS; 2) the relationship of SWBT to its data affiliate, SBC Advanced Solutions Incorporated (ASI) and; 3) voluntarily price reductions made within the M2A.


Regarding LMOS, SWBT explained to the MoPSC that it had identified a “sequencing” error in its LMOS and that the error resulted in some C-LECs being unable to submit trouble reports, but that the problem had been corrected, and that it was acting to restate performance measurement results that may have been affected by the LMOS sequencing error. 

August 20, 2001 – SWBT resubmits a joint Missouri/Arkansas section 271 application to the FCC. A new 90-day review period is triggered.

August 28, 2001 – The MoPSC issues an order accepting an AT&T and Staff recommendation that Missouri-specific data be included in the LMOS review and investigation being conducted under the auspices of the Texas PUC staff. Although SWBT argued that Missouri-specific data need not be included in the Texas audit, SWBT agreed to include the data, so long as it did not interfere with its section 271 Missouri application pending at the FCC.

September 10, 2001 – AT&T files Initial Comments on Missouri’s second section 271 application. At Section IV, AT&T alleges that SWBT is not in compliance with its obligation to provide nondiscriminatory access to its maintenance and repair systems, citing extensive criticism of the LMOS database. Responding to SWBT’s claim that “system enhancements and procedures” have fixed the [sequencing] problem, AT&T charges that at best, sequencing involved only part of the LMOS problem. AT&T’s primary concern seems to lie in its belief that SWBT’s systems fail to update LMOS records in a timely manner.

September 24, 2001 – The Department of Justice files its Evaluation of the Missouri/Arkansas applications (the second Missouri evaluation). DOJ states that “SBC admits that LMOS errors have occurred for reasons other than the service order sequencing problem on which it has focused” and that evidence in the record suggests that on a regional basis, new LMOS errors have continued to arise at an “increasing rate.” The DOJ notes that the adequacy of C-LEC access to SWBT’s maintenance and repair functionality date to SWBT’s initial Texas section 271 application, and urges the FCC to continue to give the matter careful attention.

October 1, 2001 – SWBT files ex parte LMOS letter with the FCC

October 4, 2001 – SWBT files Reply Brief in Support of its Missouri/Arkansas section 271 Application. SWBT responds to LMOS criticism in Issue #4 in the Executive Summary and submits the Joint Reply Affidavits of Dysart, Noland, Rentler, and Smith (the LMOS Reply Affidavit). The Reply Affidavit responds to criticism of LMOS, in particular that of AT&T, and to the DOJ’s allegations of “new LMOS errors” generated at an increasing rate and “inconsistency” of the manual error correction between states.

October 4, 2001 – AT&T files Reply comments alleging that even after implementation of various “fixes” by SWBT, LMOS records are not being updated in an accurate and timely manner. AT&T exhorts SWBT to update LMOS records fully, correctly, and promptly to show the correct C-LEC as the “owner” of the circuit - only then will C-LECs have the same degree of electronic access to maintenance and repair functions as that of SWBT’s retail operations (page 27).

October 4, 2001 – Joint Declaration of Walter W. Willard and Mark Van de Water Declaration on Behalf of AT&T filed.

October 16, 2001 – The FCC issues a Notice of Apparent Liability (NAL) for Forfeiture and Order proposing a forfeiture of $2.52 million due in part to charges stemming from SWBT’s Kansas/Oklahoma section 271 application. The NAL questions representations made in an affidavit by an SBC employee pertaining to the ability of C-LECs to access loop qualification information from SWBT. The FCC’s Enforcement Bureau essentially challenges the veracity of the employee’s affidavit.


Missouri is not mentioned in this NAL.

October 16, 2001 – AT&T files ex parte letter to FCC asserting that the first three days after conversion are “the critical period” when “trouble is likely.”

November 16, 2001, the FCC grants approval of SWBT’s 271 Missouri application

December 10, 2001, SWBT (through its long distance affiliate) begins providing long distance service to its Missouri customers.

May 28, 2002 – The FCC and SWBT enter into a $3.6 million Consent Decree.
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FCC, SBC COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AGREE TO CONSENT DECREE - SBC TO MAKE
$3.6 MILLION PAYMENT TO UNITED STATES TREASURY

Washington, D.C. - Today the Federal Communications Commission ("' FCC") entered into a Consent
Decree with SBC Communications, Inc. ("SBC") pursuant to which SBC has agreed to make a $3.6
million payment to the United States Treasury. This Consent Decree resolves two FCC investigations
concerning inaccurate information SBC submitted to the FCC in affidavits supporting two separate
section 271 applications to provide long distance service in Missouri, Oklahoma and Kansas. In addition
to the $3.6 million payment, SBC has agreed to implement specific procedures designed to ensure the
accuracy of information contained in future section 271 affidavits it submits to the FCC. Further, SBC
has committed to taking additional steps to ensure that all of its employees who engage in contacts with
the FCC are properly educated and thus made aware of their obligations to provide truthful, accurate,
and complete information to the Commission.

Action by the Commission, May 28, 2002, by Order (FCC 02-153). Chairman Powell, Commissioners
Abernathy, Copps and Martin

-FCC-
Enforcement Bureau Contact: John R. Winston 202-418-7450, Trent B. Harkrader 202-418-1420

TTY: 1-(888) 835-5322

http://www.fcc.gov/eb/News_Releases/DOC-222865A1.html 7/16/2002
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Before the
Federal Communications Commission
Washington, DC 20554

)

In the Matter of ) File Nos. EB-01-IH-0339
) EB-01-IH-0453
) NAL/Acct. No.200132080059
) FRN Nos. 0004-3051-24

SBC Communications, Inc. ) 0004-3335-71
) 0005-1937-01

ORDER
Adopted: May 22, 2002 Released: May 28, 2002

By the Commission:

1. The Commission has been conducting two investigations into potential violations by
SBC Communications, Inc. (“SBC”) of sections 251 and 271 of the Communications Act of
1934, as amended (“the Act”),' sections 1.17 and 1.65 of the Commission’s Rules,? and the
requirements of the SBC/SNET Consent Decree.’> These investigations focused on competitors’
access to SBC’s operations support systems (“OSS”) and information SBC provided to the
Commission as part of its section 271 applications.” The Commission and SBC have negotiated
the terms of a Consent Decree that will terminate these investigations. A copy of the Consent
Decree is attached hereto and is incorporated by reference.

2. Based on the record before us, and in the absence of material new evidence relating to
this matter, we conclude that there are no substantial and material questions of fact as to whether
SBC possesses the basic qualifications, including its character qualifications, to hold or obtain
any FCC licenses or authorizations.

! 47U.8.C. §§ 251,271,
2 47 CFR.§§1.17, 1.65.

: See SBC Communications, Inc., Order, 14 FCC Red 12741 (1999) (“SBC/SNET Consent Decree”).
N See Letter from David H. Solomon, Chief, Enforcement Bureau, Federal Communications Commission to
Sandra L. Wagner, Vice President-Federal Regulatory, SBC Telecommunications, Inc. (May 4, 2001), and Letter
from David H. Solomon, Chief, Enforcement Bureau to Sandra L. Wagner, Vice President-Federal Regulatory, SBC
Telecommunications, Inc. (July 26, 2001). See also SBC Communications, Inc., Notice of Apparent Liability for
Forfeiture and Order, 16 FCC Red 19091 (2001).
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3. We have reviewed the terms of the Consent Decree and evaluated the facts before us.
We believe that the public interest would be served by approving the Consent Decree.

4. Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED, pursuant to sections 4(i), 4(j), and 503(b) of the
Communications Act of 1934, as amended, 47 U.S.C. §§ 154(i), 154(j), and 503(b), that the
Consent Decree, incorporated by reference in and attached to this order, is hereby ADOPTED.

5. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Secretary SHALL SIGN the Consent Decree on
behalf of the Commission.

6. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the above captioned investigations ARE
TERMINATED.

FEDERAL COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION

Marlene H. Dortch
Secretary
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Before the
Federal Communications Commission
Washington, DC 20554

)
In the Matter of ) File No. EB-01-IH-0339

) EB-01-1H-0453

) NAL/Acct. No.200132080059

) FRN Nos. 0004-3051-24
SBC Communications Inc. ) 0004-3335-71

) 0005-1937-01

CONSENT DECREE

L INTRODUCTION

1. The Federal Communications Commission (the “Commission” or the “FCC”) and
SBC Telecommunications, Inc.,' (“SBC” or the “Company”) hereby enter into this Consent
Decree for the purpose of terminating two investigations by the Commission into whether SBC
may have violated sections 251 and 271 of the Communications Act of 1934, as amended (“the
Act”),2 sections 1.17 and 1.65 of the Commission’s Rules,3 and the terms of the June 1999
SBC/SNET Consent Decree.* The investigations focused on the circumstances surrounding
SBC’s submission to the Commission of inaccurate factual information in section 271
application affidavits. Specifically, these affidavits contained inaccurate information related to
competing carriers’ allegations concerning purported problems obtaining access to loop
qualification information in Texas, Kansas, Oklahoma, Arkansas, and Missouri, and electronic
access to SBC’s Loop Maintenance Operations System (“LMOS”)

5

! Although the Commission’s decisions granting SBC’s section 271 applications refer to the SBC affiliates

that applied for section 271 approval as “SWBT? (the acronym for the SBC affiliate Southwestern Bell Telephone,
L.P.), throughout this Consent Decree we will refer to SBC and its affiliates as “SBC.”

2 47U.S.C. §§ 251 and 271.
3 47 C.F.R. §§ 1.17 and 1.65.
N See SBC Communications, Inc., Order, 14 FCC Red 12741 (1999) ( “SBC/SNET Consent Decree”). The

SBC/SNET Consent Decree resolved an investigation into potential violations by SBC of sections 271 and 272 of
the Communications Act and section 1.65 of the Commission’s rules, and potentially inaccurate statements made by
SBC employees, all in relation to SBC’s application for transfer of various authorizations from Southern New
England Telephone Company (“SNET”) to SBC. The SBC/SNET Consent Decree required SBC to train those
employees who have regular contact with the Commission as part of their assigned duties in Commission rules
governing contacts with and representations to the Commission.

B See Letter from David H. Solomon, Chief, Enforcement Bureau, Federal Communications Commission, to
Sandra L. Wagner, Vice President-Federal Regulatory, SBC Telecommunications, Inc. (May 4, 2001) (“Loop
Qualification Letter of Inquiry”), and Letter from David H. Solomon, Chief, Enforcement Bureau, to Sandra L.
Wagner, Vice President-Federal Regulatory, SBC Telecommunications, Inc. (July 26, 2001) (“LMOS Letter of
Inquiry”).
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1L BACKGROUND

2. Section 271(d)(1) of the Act requires a Bell Operating Company (“BOC”) to file an
application with the Commission in order to receive authorization to provide in-region
interLATA service.® Applicants must comply with the requirements of section 271 prior to
receiving such approval. Thus, infer alia, an applicant must provide requesting carriers
nondiscriminatory access to its operations support systems (“0SS”)” in order to comply with section
271(c)(2)(B)(ii) of the Act and obtain section 271 authorization.® Once the applicant has received
section 271 authority, it must continue to meet the conditions of Commission authorization,
including providing nondiscriminatory access to its 0SS.? In this context, the Commission, in
addition to its general enforcement authority,'® has authority to suspend or revoke its approval of a
section 271 application should the BOC at any time cease to meet a condition of the approval.] !

3. Applicants seeking authority to provide in-region interLATA service submit
affidavits and other evidence as part of their applications to demonstrate that they meet the
requirements of section 271. Section 1.17 of the Commission’s Rules states that no applicant
shall make any misrepresentation or willful material omission in any application submitted to the
Commission.'? Section 1.65 of the Commission’s Rules requires applicants to furnish “additional
or corrected information” whenever information furnished in a pending application is no longer
substantially accurate and complete in all significant respects or when there has been a
substantial change as to any other matter that may be of decisional significance in a Commission
proceeding involving that application.13 Applicants that violate these rules are subject to the

N 47 U.S.C. § 271(d)(1). A LATA, or local access transport area, defines the contiguous geographic area

within which a Bell Operating Company may provide service. See 47 U.S.C. § 153(25).

7 0SS includes the variety of systems, databases, and personnel used by an incumbent LEC to provide

service o its customers. See Joint Application by SBC Communications, Inc., Southwestern Bell Tel. Co., and
Southwestern Bell Commun. Serv., Inc. d/b/a Southwestern Bell Long Distance for Provision of In-Region,
InterLATA Services in Kansas and Oklahoma, CC Docket No. 00-217, Memorandum Opinion and Order, 16 FCC
Red 6237, 6284, para. 104 (2001), aff’d and remanded in part by Sprint Communications Co. L.P. etal. v. FCC,
274 F.3d 549 (D.C. Cir. 2001). ’

8 See 47 U.S.C. § 271(c)(2)(B)(ii). See also Application by Bell Atlantic New York for Authorization Under
Section 271 of the Communications Act To Provide In-Region, InterLATA Service in the State of New York, CC
Docket No. 99-295, Memorandum Opinion and Order, 15 FCC Red 3953, at 3971, para. 44 (1999), aff’d by AT&T
Corp. v. FCC, 220 F.3d 607 (D.C. Cir. 2000); see also 47 U.S.C. § 271(c)(2)(B)(ii)-

o See § 271(d)(6)(A)(iii). “[T]he grant of [an] application merely closes a chapter. It does not end the
story.” Application by SBC Communications, Inc., Southwestern Bell Tel. Co., and Southwestern Bell Commun.
Serv., Inc. d/b/a Southwestern Bell Long Distance Pursuant to Section 271 of the Telecommunications Act of 1996
To In-Region, InterLATA Services in Texas, CC Docket No. 00-65, Memorandum Opinion and Order, 15 FCC Red
18354, 18359, para. 7 (2000)..

10 See generally, 47 U.S.C. § 503(b).

“ See, e.g., 47 U.S.C. § 271(d)(6)(A)(ii).

2 In relevant part, section 1.17, 47 C.F.R. § 1.17, states: “. . .No applicant, permittee or licensee

shall in any response to Commission correspondence or inquiry or in any application, pleading, report or

any other written statement submitted to the Commission, make any misrepresentation or willful material

omission bearing on any matter within the jurisdiction of the Commission.”

13 In relevant part, section 1.65,47 C.F.R. § 1.65, states:

2
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Commission’s enforcement authority.14

4. Pursuant to these rules, the Enforcement Bureau conducted two investigations in
relation to SBC’s Texas, Kansas/Oklahoma and Missouri section 271 applications. The first
investigation arose from SBC’s representations in the Kansas/Oklahoma proceeding concerning
competing carriers’ ability to access loop qualification information from SBC, which raised
questions about potential violations of sections 251 and 271 of the Act. It also involved the
timeliness of disclosures the company made to the Commission subsequent to the Commission’s
approval of the section 271 application, SBC’s implementation of and compliance with the 1999
SBC/SNET Consent Decree, and the veracity of an affidavit by an SBC employee that SBC
submitted in connection with the investigation.'”  Following the Enforcement Bureau’s
investigation of these issues, the Commission issued a Notice of Apparent Liability and Order on
October 16, 2001, in which the Commission proposed a forfeiture of $2.52 million for SBC’s
apparent violation of sections 1.17 and 1.65 of the Commission’s Rules and of the training
requirements of the 1999 SBC/SNET Consent Decree.'® Additionally, the Commission required
SBC to report to the Commission, through an independent audit, on the success of its efforts to
ensure compliance with section 1.65 of the Commission’s Rules and the terms of the SBC/SNET
Consent Decree. SBC submiitted its response to the NAL on November 21, 2001."7

5. The Enforcement Bureau’s second investigation arose from a competing carrier’s
complaint about difficulties obtaining electronic access to SBC’s LMOS system.”3 This

Each applicant is responsible for the continuing accuracy and completeness of information furnished in a
pending application or in Commission proceedings involving a pending application. Whenever the
information furnished in the pending application is no longer substantially accurate and complete in all
significant respects, the applicant shall as promptly as possible and in any event within 30 days, unless
good cause is shown, amend or request the amendment of his application so as to furnish such additional or
corrected information as may be appropriate. Whenever there has been a substantial change as to any other
matter which may be of decisional significance in a Commission proceeding involving the pending
application, the applicant shall as promptly as possible and in any event within 30 days, unless good cause
is shown, submit a statement furnishing such additional or corrected information as may be appropriate,
which shall be served upon parties of record in accordance with § 1.47. .. For the purposes of this section,
an application is “pending” before the Commission from the time it is accepted for filing by the
Commission until a Commission grant or denial of the application is no longer subject to reconsideration
by the Commission or to review by any court.

14 See, e.g., 47 U.S.C. § 503(b).
1 See Loop Qualification Letter of Inquiry.
B See SBC Communications Inc,, Notice of Apparent Liability for Forfeiture and Order, 16 FCC Red 19091

(2001) (“NAL”). The Commission premised SBC’s apparent section 1.17 violation on statements made in an
affidavit signed by an SBC employee and submitted by SBC with its April 6, 2001 report to the Enforcement
Bureau.

7 See Response of SBC Communications Inc. to Notice of Apparent Liability for Forfeiture and Order, EB-
01-1H-0339 (filed Nov. 21, 2001).
1 See Comments of AT&T Corp. in Opposition to SBC Communications Inc.’s Section 271 Application for

Missouri, CC Docket No. 01-88, (filed Apr. 24, 2001) and Letter from Richard E. Young, Sidley Austin Brown &
Wood to Magalie Roman Salas, Secretary, Federal Communications Commission, CC Docket No. 01-88, at 7 (filed
May 24, 2001).
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investigation, as did the first, concerned SBC’s compliance with sections 251 and 271 of the Act,
the veracity of affidavits SBC submitted in connection with section 271 applications, the
timeliness of disclosures the company made in relation to the Commission’s approval of those
applications, and questions about SBC’s implementation of and compliance with the SBC/SNET
Consent Decree."

111

DEFINITIONS

For purposes of this Consent Decree and the attached Compliance Plan, the following

definitions shall apply.

@

“FCC” or the “Commission” means the Federal Communications Commission and
all of its bureaus and offices.

(b) “SBC” or the “Company” means SBC Communications Inc. and its wholly owned

©

(d)
(©

subsidiaries, including, but not limited to the following: Southwestern Bell
Telephone, L.P., Pacific Bell, Nevada Bell, Illinois Bell, Indiana Bell, Michigan
Bell, Ohio Bell, Wisconsin Bell, SNET, Southwestern Bell Communications
Services, Inc., SBC Advanced Solutions, Inc. (ASI), Ameritech Advanced Data
Services (AADS), SBC-MSI and SBC long distance subsidiaries. It will not apply
to Cingular, or any other company that is not wholly owned and controlled by SBC,
including SBC’s foreign affiliates.

“In-region state” is defined at 47 U.S.C. § 271(i)(1), and for SBC includes Texas,
Kansas, Oklahoma, Missouri, Arkansas, Illinois, Indiana, Michigan, Ohio,
Wisconsin, Nevada, and California.

“Parties” means SBC and the FCC.

“SBC FCC Representatives” means SBC employees authorized by SBC to represent
SBC in “Contacts with the Commission,” as that term is defined in subparagraph (h)
of this paragraph. SBC will provide the Chief of the Enforcement Bureau a list of
SBC employees so authorized within 10 calendar days after the Commission Order
adopting this Consent Decree becomes final, and will provide the Chief of the
Enforcement Bureau an updated list on a monthly basis. This updated list will
identify any SBC employees who have been added or removed from the previously
submitted list. This list will include: (1) the Chairman and CEO of SBC and the
SBC Officers who report directly to the Chairman and CEO; (2) staff assigned to
the Federal Regulatory Group located in Washington, D.C. and the SBC Officer to
whom this Group reports; (3) attorneys assigned to the FCC Legal Group located in
Washington, D.C. and the SBC Legal Officer to whom this Group reports; (4)
attorneys assigned to the SBC 271 Legal Team and the SBC Legal Officer to whom
this Team reports; (5) all other SBC employees who have been authorized to make

19

See LMOS Letter of Inquiry.
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“contacts” with the FCC by one of the SBC FCC Representatives listed above; and
(6) SBC employees who sign and submit sworn affidavits or statements on behalf of
SBC to the FCC after the effective date of this Consent Decree.

(®) “SBC Compliance Guidelines” means the Compliance Primer used by SBC to
provide training to SBC FCC Representatives on the requirements of the SBC/SNET
Consent Decree, this Consent Decree, sections 1.17 and 1.65 of the Commission’s
Rules, and any other FCC rule pertaining to contacts with and representations to the
FCC.

(g) “Compliance Training” means training SBC provides to SBC FCC Representatives
on the requirements of the SBC/SNET Consent Decree, this Consent Decree,
sections 1.17 and 1.65 of the Commission’s Rules, and any other FCC rules
pertaining to contacts with and representations to the FCC.

(h) “Contacts with the Commission” is defined as an in-person meeting with an FCC
Commissioner or FCC staff, or participation in a telephone or conference call with
an FCC Commissioner or FCC staff that has been scheduled, initiated, coordinated
or authorized by an SBC FCC Representative for purposes of discussing substantive
matters concerning a pending matter relating to SBC, or the submission of a written
statement, including an affidavit or sworn statement, to an F CC Commissioner, FCC
staff, or the FCC.

(i) “Order” or “Adopting Order” means an order of the FCC adopting this Consent
Decree without change, addition, or modification.

(j) “Final Order” means an order that is no longer subject to administrative or judicial
reconsideration, review, appeal, or stay.

(k) “OSS” or “operations support systems” means systems used by SBC to perform the
functions of pre-ordering, ordering, provisioning, maintenance and repair, and
billing as defined in the Implementation of the Local Competition Provisions of the
Telecommunications Act of 1996, Third Report and Order, CC Docket No. 96-98,
15 FCC Red 3696 (1999).

(1) “SBC/SNET Consent Decree” refers to the agreement between the Commission and
SBC, including the Compliance Plan requirements contained therein, resolving the
informal investigation by the Commission into potential violations by SBC of
sections 271 and 272 of the Communications Act and section 1.65 of the
Commission’s rules, and potentially inaccurate statements made by SBC employees,
all in relation to SBC’s application for transfer of various authorizations from
Southern New England Telephone Company to SBC.”

2 See SBC/SNET Consent Decree, 14 FCC Red 12741 (1999).
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(m) “Investigations” or “investigation” means, collectively or singularly, the
investigations commenced by letters of inquiry the Enforcement Bureau issued to
SBC on May 4, 2001 concerning loop qualification and/or on July 26, 2001
concerning LMOS, and information learned from interviews, documents, informal
complaints, ex partes, or other information received by the Commission related to
the issues addressed therein (excluding information received in, or in connection
with, any formal complaint proceeding) prior to the date of the Adoption Order.

(n) “Effective Date” means the date on which the Commission adopts the Adopting
Order.

1IV. AGREEMENT

7. SBC and the Commission agree that this Consent Decree does not constitute either an
adjudication of the merits, or any factual or legal finding or determination of noncompliance by
SBC with the requirements of the Act, as amended, with the Commission’s Rules, or with the
requirements of the SBC/SNET Consent Decree. The Parties agree that this Consent Decree is
for settlement purposes only and that by agreeing to this Consent Decree, the Company does not
admit any noncompliance, violation, or liability associated with or arising from any alleged
actions or failures, including any problems or failures described in the letters of inquiry or the
NAL, or in any informal complaints, ex partes, or other information the Commission received on
or before the Effective Date of this Consent Decree.

8. In express reliance on the covenants and representations contained herein, the
Commission agrees to terminate the Investigations and cancel the NAL, except for the
requirements in paragraphs 64, 89, 97 and 98 regarding the independent audit.”"

9. The Parties agree and acknowledge that this Consent Decree shall constitute a final
settlement between SBC and the Commission of the Investigations. In consideration for the
termination of these Investigations in accordance with the terms of this Consent Decree, SBC
agrees to the terms, conditions, and procedures contained herein and in the accompanying and
incorporated Compliance Plan. To ensure SBC’s future compliance with the Act and our rules,
SBC agrees, effective thirty days after the release of the Order, to implement the specific
measures contained in the attached Compliance Plan. SBC also agrees that the definitions of
“SBC FCC Representatives” and “Contacts with the Commission” contained in paragraph 6 of
this Consent Decree shall apply to the terms “SBC’s FCC representatives” and “FCC Contacts”
in the SBC Compliance Plan Regarding FCC Rules and Regulations attached to the SBC/SNET
Consent Decree.

10. SBC has performed an internal investigation concerning an SBC employee’s
representations to the Enforcement Bureau related to its loop qualification investigation and,
because of the unique circumstances of these representations (including the fact that there were

2 See NAL, 16 FCC Red at 19114, 19125, 19127-28.

6
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no witnesses to the specific facts upon which the representations in question are based), SBC has
no basis upon which to determine whether each of the facts contained in those representations
are or are not accurate. SBC confirms that it is SBC corporate policy that if, after an internal
investigation and based upon a preponderance of the evidence, SBC concludes that one of its
employees has intentionally made any misrepresentation, or engaged in any willful material
omission in any submission to the Commission, either orally or in writing, SBC will take
appropriate disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal.

11. SBC will make a voluntary contribution to the United States Treasury in the amount
of $3.6 million dollars ($3,600,000) within 10 calendar days after the Commission Order
adopting this Consent Decree becomes final. SBC must make this payment by check, wire
transfer or money order drawn to the order of the Federal Communications Commission, and the
check, wire transfer or money order should refer to “NAL Acct. No. 200132080059” and “FRN
Nos. 0004-3051-24, 0004-3335-71, and 0005-1937-01.” If SBC makes this payment by check or
money order, it must mail the check or money order to: Forfeiture Collection Section, Finance
Branch, Federal Communications Commission, P.O. Box 73482, Chicago, Illinois, 60673-7482.
If SBC makes this payment by wire transfer, it must wire such payment in accordance with
Commission procedures for wire transfers.

12. The Commission agrees that, in the absence of material new evidence related to
these matters, it will not use the facts developed in the Investigations through the date of this
Consent Decree, or the existence of this Consent Decree, to institute, on its own motion, any new
proceedings, formal or informal, or to take any actions on its own motion against the Company
concerning the matters that were the subject of the Investigations. The Commission also agrees
that, in the absence of material new evidence related to these matters, it will not use the facts the
Bureau developed in the Investigations to institute on its own motion any proceeding, formal or
informal, or take any action against SBC with respect to its basic qualifications, including its
character qualifications, to be a Commission licensee. Consistent with the foregoing, nothing in
this Consent Decree limits the Commission’s authority to consider and adjudicate any complaint
that may be filed pursuant to sections 208 or 271 of the Communications Act, as amended,”” and
to take any action in response to such complaint.

13.  The Company waives any and all rights it may have to seek administrative or judicial
reconsideration, review, appeal or stay, or to otherwise challenge or contest the validity of this
Consent Decree and the Order adopting this Consent Decree, provided the Order adopts the
Consent Decree without change, addition, or modification.

14.  The Company’s decision to enter into this Consent Decree is expressly contingent
upon issuance of an Order that is consistent with this Consent Decree, and which adopts the
Consent Decree without change, addition, or modification.

15. In the event that this Consent Decree is rendered invalid by any court of competent
jurisdiction, it shall become null and void and may not be used in any manner in any legal
proceeding.

= 47 U.S.C. §§ 208 and 271.
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16. If the Commission, or the United States on behalf of the Commission, brings a
judicial action to enforce the terms of the Adopting Order, neither SBC nor the Commission will
contest the validity of the Consent Decree or Adopting Order, and the Company will waive any
statutory right to a trial de novo.

17.  Any violation of the Consent Decree or the Adopting Order will constitute a separate
violation of a Commission order, entitling the Commission to exercise any rights and remedies
attendant to the enforcement of a Commission order.

18. The Parties agree that the terms of the accompanying Compliance Plan are
incorporated into this Consent Decree. The parties further agree that Part II of the accompanying
Compliance Plan will remain in effect only until SBC has received final authorization for all of
its section 271 applications for its twelve in-region states. For the purposes of this Consent
Decree, final authorization will mean once a Commission grant of an application is no longer
subject to reconsideration by the Commission or to review by any court.

19. The Parties agree that Part I of the accompanying Compliance Plan, and the
SBC/SNET Consent Decree shall remain in effect until May 1, 2007, unless the Commission
votes to extend either of them.

20. This Consent Decree shall terminate at such time as Parts I and II of the
accompanying Compliance Plan have both terminated as set forth in paragraphs 18 and 19,
above.

21.  The Parties also agree that if any provision of the Consent Decree conflicts with any
subsequent rule or order adopted by the Commission (except an order specifically intended to
revise the terms of this Consent Decree to which SBC does not consent) that provision will be
superseded by such Commission rule or order.

22.  This Consent Decree may be signed in counterparts.

FEDERAL COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION

By:

Marlene H. Dortch
Secretary

SBC Telecommunications, Inc.

By:

Priscilla Hill-Ardoin
Senior Vice-President-FCC
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COMPLIANCE PLAN'

L Contacts with and representations to the FCC.

A. SBC FCC Representatives:

1. SBC will train and provide materials to its SBC FCC Representatives
concerning the requirements of this Consent Decree, the SBC/SNET Consent
Decree, and certain Commission rules. Specifically, SBC will:

a) train its SBC FCC Representatives in SBC’s obligations regarding
contacts with and representations to the FCC under the terms of the
SBC/SNET Consent Decree, this Consent Decree, and sections 1.17 and
1.65 of the Commission’s Rules; and

b) provide each of its FCC Representatives with the SBC Compliance
Guidelines setting forth SBC’s obligations regarding contacts with and
representations to the FCC under the terms of the SBC/SNET Consent
Decree, this Consent Decree, and sections 1.17 and 1.65 of the
Commission’s Rules.

2. SBC will provide the materials and training described in I.A.1., above:
a) to all SBC FCC Representatives each year;

b) except in the case of an employee who signs and submits a section 271
affidavit on behalf of SBC, to each employee SBC designates as an SBC
FCC Representative by including such employee on SBC’s list of
authorized SBC FCC Representatives before such employee participates
in a contact with the FCC; and

¢) to each SBC employee who signs and submits an FCC affidavit on
behalf of SBC no later than five business days after the date on which
such employee is assigned responsibility to prepare his or her initial
affidavit, or before the date the employee signs such affidavit, whichever
occurs first.

3. SBC will maintain written certification from each employee in LA.2.
certifying that he or she has received the training and understands the obligations
regarding contacts with and representations to the FCC under the terms of the
SBC/SNET Consent Decree, this Consent Decree, and section 1.17 and 1.65 of the

This Compliance Plan incorporates Section I11: Definitions from the Consent Decree.
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Commission’s Rules, and reviewed and understands the SBC Compliance
Guidelines.

B. Contacts with the FCC: SBC will take reasonable steps to ensure that only an SBC
FCC Representative schedules or participates in a Contact with the Commission. In
particular, at least once per calendar year, SBC will notify its management employees
(i.e., non-bargained for employees) via e-mail that they may not contact the FCC, an FCC
Commissioner, or FCC staff for purposes of discussing substantive matters concerning a
pending matter relating to SBC, unless they are authorized by SBC to engage in such
contact and have received Compliance Training, as defined in paragraph 6(g) of the
Consent Decree.

C. Disciplinary Action: If, after an internal investigation and based upon a
preponderance of the evidence, SBC concludes that one of its employees has
intentionally made any misrepresentation, or engaged in any willful material omission in
any submission to the Commission, either orally or in writing, SBC will take appropriate
disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal.

D. Compliance Tracking: SBC will assign a manager in its Federal Regulatory Group
the responsibility for tracking SBC’s compliance with the foregoing requirements,
including the maintenance of records documenting such compliance. SBC will make
copies of relevant records available to the FCC, upon written request, within ten days of
such request, unless negotiated otherwise.

Section 271 Applications

A. Affiant Training: SBC will inform each affiant who files an affidavit with the FCCin
support of any section 271 application of SBC’s obligations under section 1.17 and 1.65
of the Commission’s Rules no later than five business days after the affiant is assigned
the responsibility to prepare his or her initial section 271 affidavit, or before the date the
employee signs such affidavit, whichever occurs first.

B. Affidavit Verification: SBC will require that, prior to signing an affidavit that is filed
with the Commission in support of a section 271 application, each affiant verify to a
reasonable certainty, in writing, that the factual assertions included in the affidavit are
accurate and complete in all significant respects. Such verification must be based on
either the affiant’s own personal knowledge, or the personal knowledge of one or more
SBC employees whom the affiant reasonably believes are knowledgeable and reliable. If
an SBC employee verifies factual information in an affidavit filed with the Commission
in support of a section 271 application based on personal knowledge, then that SBC
employee will identify the factual assertions about which he or she has personal
knowledge and verify to a reasonable certainty, in writing, that the factual assertion is
accurate and complete in all significant respects.

C. SBC Employees Verifying Factual Information Filed with the Commission: SBC
2
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will provide all employees verifying factual information in an affidavit that is filed with
the Commission in support of a section 271 application with written instructions
summarizing that employee’s responsibility under sections 1.17 and 1.65 of the
Commission’s Rules.

D. List of Employees Verifying Information in Affidavits: SBC will maintain a list of
those employees who, after the effective date of this Consent Decree, verify the factual
assertions contained in an affidavit, or any portion thereof, filed with the FCC in support
of a section 271 application. The list shall specify which affidavit(s) the employee
verified and, if an employee verified only part of an affidavit, which paragraphs of the
affidavit the employee verified.

E. Affidavit Statement: SBC will require that affidavits signed by an SBC employee
that are filed with the FCC in support of a section 271 application include a statement
that the affiant has:

1. received the training SBC is obligated to provide to all SBC FCC
Representatives;

2. reviewed and understands the SBC Compliance Guidelines;

3. signed an acknowledgement of his or her training and review and
understanding of the Guidelines; and

4. complied with the requirements of the SBC Compliance Guidelines.

F. Compliance Tracking: The Manager referenced in Section I will have responsibility
for tracking SBC’s compliance with the foregoing requirements, including maintaining
records documenting such requirements. SBC will make copies of the relevant records
available to the FCC, upon written request, within ten days of such request, unless
negotiated otherwise.

Independent Audit

A. An independent auditor shall perform a compliance attestation of the requirements of
this Compliance Plan for the period June 1, 2002 through May 31, 2003 in accordance
with the standards promulgated by the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“AICPA™).  The independent auditor shall file its audit report with the
Chief, Enforcement Bureau no later than 90 days after the end of the audit period. In
particular, the independent auditor shall perform an examination engagement resulting in
a positive opinion (with all exceptions noted). The following terms and conditions shall
apply to the conduct of the audit: ‘

1. The independent auditor shall be Emst & Young, unless otherwise agreed by
SBC and the Enforcement Bureau;

3
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2. The independent auditor shall submit its preliminary audit program to the
Enforcement Bureau and SBC for review and comment before starting any work.
The final audit program shall be determined by the independent auditor based
upon AICPA standards, taking into consideration the comments of the
Enforcement Bureau and SBC; and

3. The independent auditor shall make available to the Enforcement Bureau
upon request its working papers and supporting documentation for a period of two
years after completing the audit.




ATTACHMENT A








� See, for example, [FCC] Reply Comments of AT&T Corp. In Opposition to SBC Communications, Inc.’s Section 271 Application for Arkansas and Missouri. October 4, 2001. Page 30. See also Evaluation of the United States Department of Justice, September 24, 2002, footnote 44, (The Second Missouri SWBT Section 271 Application) 


� Transcript of the 8-16-01 Oral Presentation, beginning on page 3360.


� Evaluation of the Second Missouri Section 271 Application, U.S. DOJ, September 24, 2001, footnote 35
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